
 
 
 

 
Tom Horwood 
Joint Chief Executive 
of Guildford and Waverley  
Borough Councils  

 

 
Guildford Borough Council 
Millmead House, Millmead, Guildford, Surrey  GU2 4BB 

Guildford Borough Council
Millmead House, Millmead, Guildford, Surrey  GU2 4BB

www.guildford.gov.uk

Contact Officer:  
John Armstrong  
Democratic Services & Elections Manager 
Tel: 01483 444102 

21 September 2022  

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the HEARINGS SUB-COMMITTEE to 
be held in the Council Chamber, Millmead House, Millmead, Guildford, Surrey GU2 4BB 
on TUESDAY 27 SEPTEMBER 2022 at 7.00 pm. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Tom Horwood 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
 

MEMBERS OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Under Article 10 of the Council’s Constitution, the Hearings Sub-Committee shall be 
politically balanced and comprise five voting members of the Corporate Governance and 
Standards Committee, the composition of which shall be determined by the Monitoring 
Officer in consultation with the chairman of that Committee.  
 
The five members are as follows: 
 

Councillor Jon Askew 
Councillor George Potter 
Councillor Jo Randall 
Councillor Tony Rooth 
Councillor Deborah Seabrook 
 

 
QUORUM 3 

 
WEBCASTING NOTICE  

This meeting will be recorded for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the Council’s 
website in accordance with the Council’s capacity in performing a task in the public 
interest and in line with the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014.  
The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except where there are confidential or exempt 
items, and the footage will be on the website for six months. 
 
If you have any queries regarding webcasting of meetings, please contact Committee 
Services. 
 
 
 
 

Page 1



 

 

THE COUNCIL’S STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK (2021- 2025) 
 

Our Vision: 
 
A green, thriving town and villages where people have the homes they need, access to quality 
employment, with strong and safe communities that come together to support those needing 
help. 
 
Our Mission: 
 
A trusted, efficient, innovative, and transparent Council that listens and responds quickly to the 
needs of our community. 
 
Our Values: 
 
• We will put the interests of our community first. 
• We will listen to the views of residents and be open and accountable in our decision-making.  
• We will deliver excellent customer service.  
• We will spend money carefully and deliver good value for money services.  
• We will put the environment at the heart of our actions and decisions to deliver on our 

commitment to the climate change emergency.  
• We will support the most vulnerable members of our community as we believe that every 

person matters.  
• We will support our local economy.  
• We will work constructively with other councils, partners, businesses, and communities to 

achieve the best outcomes for all.  
• We will ensure that our councillors and staff uphold the highest standards of conduct. 

 
Our strategic priorities: 
 
Homes and Jobs 
 
• Revive Guildford town centre to unlock its full potential 
• Provide and facilitate housing that people can afford 
• Create employment opportunities through regeneration 
• Support high quality development of strategic sites 
• Support our business community and attract new inward investment 
• Maximise opportunities for digital infrastructure improvements and smart places technology 

 
Environment 

 
• Provide leadership in our own operations by reducing carbon emissions, energy consumption 

and waste 
• Engage with residents and businesses to encourage them to act in more environmentally 

sustainable ways through their waste, travel, and energy choices 
• Work with partners to make travel more sustainable and reduce congestion 
• Make every effort to protect and enhance our biodiversity and natural environment. 
 
Community 
 
• Tackling inequality in our communities 
• Work with communities to support those in need 
• Support the unemployed back into the workplace and facilitate opportunities for residents to 

enhance their skills 
• Prevent homelessness and rough-sleeping in the borough 

Page 2



 

 

A G E N D A 
ITEM 
  
1.   ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  

  
2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  

  
3.   DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  
 In accordance with the Councillors’ Code of Conduct, a councillor is required to 

disclose at the meeting any disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI) that they may have in 
respect of any matter for consideration on this agenda.  Any councillor with a DPI 
must not participate in any discussion or vote regarding that matter and they must 
also withdraw from the meeting immediately before consideration of the matter. 
  
If that DPI has not been registered, the councillor must notify the Monitoring Officer of 
the details of the DPI within 28 days of the date of the meeting. 
 
Councillors are further invited to disclose any non-pecuniary interest which may be 
relevant to any matter on this agenda, in the interests of transparency, and to confirm 
that it will not affect their objectivity in relation to that matter. 
  

4.   ALLEGATIONS REGARDING THE CONDUCT OF TWO BOROUGH 
COUNCILLORS (Pages 5 - 144) 
  

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Hearings Sub-Committee Report    
Ward(s) affected: N/A 
Report of Deputy Monitoring Officer 
Author: Claire Beesly, Senior Legal Specialist (Corporate, Commercial & Property) and 
Deputy Monitoring Officer 
Tel: 01483 444144 
Email: claire.beesly@guildford.gov.uk 
Date: 27 September 2022 

Allegations regarding the conduct of two Borough 
Councillors 

Executive Summary 
 
The behaviour of councillors is regulated by the Council’s adopted Code of Conduct (see 
exhibit SG2 to Appendix 1).  Any allegations received regarding a failure by a councillor to 
comply with the Code of Conduct must be dealt with under the Council’s adopted 
‘Arrangements for dealing with allegations of misconduct by Councillors’ (see exhibit SG1 to 
Appendix 1). 
 
A complaint has been received against two Borough Councillors (the Subject Members) and 
following attempts to resolve the complaint by way of informal resolution an Independent 
Investigator was appointed.  The Independent Investigator concluded that the Subject 
Members have failed to comply with the Code of Conduct and their final report and supporting 
evidence is contained in Appendix 1 to this report.   

 
Recommendation to Committee 

 
That the Sub-Committee determines whether either or both the Subject Members have 
breached the Council’s Code of Conduct and, if so, whether any sanction should be applied 
and the nature of that sanction.   
 
Reason for Recommendation:  
To determine the complaints in accordance with the Council’s adopted Arrangements. 
 
Is the report (or part of it) exempt from publication? (delete as appropriate)  
No 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to set out the information relating to a complaint by 

way of allegation made by Mr Martin Giles (the ‘Complainant’) on 29 June 2021 
against Cllr Paul Spooner and Cllr Graham Eyre (the ‘Subject Members’).  The 
Sub-Committee must consider whether, on the facts found, either or both Subject 

Page 5

Agenda item number: 4



 

 
 

Members have failed to comply with the Code of Conduct for Councillors and Co-
opted Members (the ‘Code of Conduct’).    
 

1.2 If the Sub-Committee decides that either or both Subject Members have not 
failed to comply with the Code of Conduct no further action will be taken. If the 
Sub-Committee decides that either or both Subject Members have failed to 
comply with the Code then they must determine what sanctions, if any, should be 
applied to the Subject Member(s).  The Sub-Committee must give reasons for 
any decision it takes. 

 
2.  Strategic Priorities 
 
2.1 Promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by councillors is one of the 

key terms of reference of the Corporate Governance and Standards Committee  

3.  Background 
 
3.1 A complaint was received from the Complainant on 29 June 2021 against the 

Subject Members (see exhibit SG7 of Appendix 1).  The complaint was allocated 
to the Deputy Monitoring Officer who assessed the complaint on 28 September 
2021 in accordance with chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011 (the ‘Act’) and the 
adopted arrangements for dealing with allegations of misconduct by Councillors 
(the ’Arrangements’) which the Council has put in place for such assessment 
under s.28(6) of the Act.   
 

3.2 The Deputy Monitoring Officer considered that there may be potential breaches 
of the Code of Conduct by both Subject Members and following consultation with 
the Independent Person concluded that the complaint could be resolved by 
informal resolution.  
 

3.3 The Subject Members did not agree with the proposed informal resolution and 
negotiations then took place to see if there were any alternative ways in which to 
resolve the complaint.  It was not possible to identify a resolution to the complaint 
that satisfied both the Complainant and the Subject Members.  On 19 January 
2022 the Complainant confirmed that having considered the potential cost to the 
public purse they still felt that they had no option but to pursue the complaint.  
 

3.4 The Deputy Monitoring Officer considered the further views of the Independent 
Person and, given that no informal resolution could be agreed, decided that the 
matter should be referred for independent investigation.  An Independent 
Investigator Simon Goacher, Partner at Weightmans LLP, was identified and 
instructions were sent to him in January 2022.  It was later discovered that due to 
internal email security processes the instructions had not reached the 
Independent Investigator and there was therefore some delay.   
 

3.5 The final report of the Independent Investigator (Appendix 1) was received on 7 
June 2022, the draft having been circulated for comment to both the Subject 
Members and the Complainant.  The report contains a number of exhibits 
including the relevant Council codes and interviews with the Complainant and the 
Subject Members. 

Page 6

Agenda item number: 4



 

 
 

 
3.6 The conclusions reached in the final report are that the Subject Members have 

both failed to comply with paragraphs 2(1) (treating others with respect) and 4 
(bringing your office or the Council into disrepute or acting in a manner contrary 
to the Council’s duty to promote high standards of conduct) of the Code of 
Conduct.     
 

3.7 The report was shared with both Subject Members on 28 July 2022 and their 
views sought in accordance with the Arrangements to: 

a. identify those paragraphs in the report which you agree with and those 
which you do not, setting out your reasons for disagreeing; 

b. identify any further documentary evidence upon which you would like to 
rely at the hearing;  

c. confirm whether you are going to attend the hearing and if so whether you 
will represent yourself or you intend to instruct someone to represent you 
– if you intend on being represented then please could you provide their 
details as soon as possible; 

d. give any reasons why you consider the whole or any part of the hearing 
should be held in private and whether any of the documentation supplied 
to the Hearings Sub-Committee should be withheld from the public. 

 
3.8 Both Subject Members confirmed that they did not have anything further to add to 

the information contained in the Independent Investigator’s final report and gave 
no reasons as to why the hearing should be held in private.  Cllr Eyre indicated 
that he did not intend on attending the hearing.   
 

4.  Consultations 
 

4.1 The Independent Person has been consulted at each stage of the process and 
has recommended that this matter would be suitable for informal resolution but 
given that this has not been successful the matter should be referred to the Sub-
Committee for determination. 
 

5. Financial Implications 
 
5.1 The Sub-Committee cannot make any order as to costs.  A Subject Member is 

required to meet their own costs of any representation at a hearing before this 
Sub-Committee 

 
6. Legal Implications 
 
6.1      The Council is under a duty in accordance with s.27(1) of the Act to promote and 

maintain high standards of conduct by Members and in discharging this duty the 
Council is required to adopt a code dealing with the conduct that is expected by 
Members. The Council must secure that its code of conduct is consistent with the 
principles of selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty, 
and leadership. 

 
6.2 In accordance with s.28(4) of the Act any failure to comply with the Code of 

Conduct is to be dealt with in accordance with arrangements which it is required 

Page 7

Agenda item number: 4



 

 
 

to adopt.  Such arrangements must provide the Council to appoint at least one 
Independent Person whose views (a) must be sought by the Council before it 
takes a decision on any allegation which it has decided shall be investigated; (b) 
may be sought by the Council at any other stage; and (c) may be sought by a 
councillor or co-opted member. 

 
6.3 Part 5 of the Council’s Constitution sets out the Codes and Protocols which have 

been adopted by the Council.  The Council’s Code of Conduct is at page 5-1, the 
Arrangements for dealing with allegations of misconduct by Councillors is at page 
5-69 and the procedure and powers of the Corporate Governance and Standards 
Committee, and Hearings Sub-Committee at page 5-87. 
 
Conduct of the Hearing 

6.4 The procedure for the hearing is set out in the Arrangements and accordingly, 
once the initial formalities are concluded, the hearing shall proceed as follows: 
 
(a) Presentation of the Complaint by the Investigating Officer including the 

opportunity for the Subject Members to ask questions for the purpose of 
clarification through the Chair. 

(b) Presentation of Subject Members’ cases including the opportunity for the 
Investigating Officer to ask questions through the Chair. 

(c) Summing up by the Independent Investigator and the Subject Members 
(d) Deliberations and the Sub-Committee will announce whether or not it 

considers there has been a breach of the Code of Conduct and the reasons. 
(e) If the Sub-Committee considers that there has been a breach the Chair will 

then invite both the Independent Investigator and the Subject Members to 
make representations as to whether any sanctions or recommendations 
should be applied and in what form.  The Sub-Committee will then adjourn 
for further deliberations before announcing their decision. 

 
7.  Human Resource Implications 
 
7.1 There are no human resource implications. 
 
8.         Equality and Diversity Implications 
 
8.1       This duty has been considered in the context of this report and it has been 

concluded that there are no equality and diversity implications arising directly 
from this report. 
 

9. Climate Change/Sustainability Implications 
 

9.1 This duty has been considered in the context of this report and it has been 
concluded that there are no climate change/sustainability implications arising 
directly from this report. 
 

Page 8

Agenda item number: 4



 

 
 

10.  Summary of Options 
 

10.1 The Sub-Committee should determine whether or not either or both Subject 
Members have breached the Code of Conduct.   

 
10.2 If the Sub-Committee concludes that either or both Subject Members have 

breached the Code of Conduct then the Sub-Committee should take action in 
respect of the Subject Member as may be necessary to promote and maintain 
high standards of conduct in accordance with paragraph 28 of the Arrangements. 

  
10.3 The Sub-Committee cannot suspend a Subject Member, withdraw a Subject 

Member’s allowance, impose financial penalties, award compensation, or make 
an award of costs.  
 

11.   Background Papers 
 

None 
 

12.  Appendices 
 

Appendix 1: Investigation Report of Simon Goucher, Partner, Weightmans 
 
  

Page 9

Agenda item number: 4



This page is intentionally left blank



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 1

Guildford Borough Council

Weightmans reference: SIG/820982/2

Report of an investigation into an allegation concerning the conduct of 
Councillors Paul Spooner and Graham Eyre

 

Simon Goacher, Partner
Weightmans LLP

100 Old Hall Street
Liverpool L3 9QJ

Page 11

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 2

Contents

Summary Page 

Relevant legislation Pages

Members’ official details Page  1

Background Pages 11-14

Summary of the evidence gathered Pages 14-24

Findings of fact Pages 24

Reasoning as to whether there is a breach of the Pages 24-27
Code of Conduct

Findings Page 28

Comments on the draft report Pages 28-29

Schedule of evidence Page 30  

 

Page 12

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 3

 Summary

1. A complaint was made by Martin Giles, the editor of Guildford 
Dragon News (“GDN”) that Cllrs Paul Spooner and Graham Eyre, 
members of Guildford Borough Council (“the Council”), failed to 
comply with the Council’s Code of Conduct for members (“the 
Code”). 

2. The complaint states that the councillors failed to comply with the 
Code as follows;

a. Cllr Spooner;

i. sent an email to David Reading on 26 June 2021 which 
stated, “David I am seriously unimpressed that Giles has 
sent other members of the group my responses for 
collaboration. So you can get stuffed.”

ii. sent a WhatsApp message to David Reading stated, “Is the 
rag you write for incapable of understanding the difference 
between a vote and a nomination? I was the only group 
member nominated and the vote was 8:1. I hope that is clear 
for your pea brained editor.” 

iii. posted a tweet which stated, “What a seedy rag 
@guildforddragon is. They send me qns (sic) for answering.  
I do that promptly and to the best of my ability and then 
they circulate to other members of the group as they don’t 
believe my responses. Balanced? Laughable.” and

iv. posted a tweet which stated, “They send me set questions 
from their Ash correspondence David Reading. Giles as 
editor doesn’t like the collegiate responses and starts 
contacting other Group members as he doesn’t believe me 
and wants scandal. It really is a dirty little rag.”

b. On 26 June 2021Cllr Eyre stated in an email to David 
Reading, “The latest little bending of the truth regarding Paul 
being elected as Group Leader. Your grubby little paper, or 
should I say your grubby little boss, cannot accept anything 
he doesn’t like, so he just prints lies and insinuations.  I, for 
one, thought you were better than that, and wouldn’t allow 

Page 13

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 4

unsubstantiated rumours to be printed. The information you 
were given was absolutely correct and could have been 
verified by anyone at the meeting.  however, Giles decides to 
go with lies from people who weren’t even there.  It’s a sad 
day, but it’s not the first time lies and half truths have been 
printed in the Dragon, rather than facts. Graham.”

3. I have investigated these complaints and concluded that;

a. Cllr Spooner has failed to comply with the Code; and
b. Cllr Eyre has failed to comply with the Code.

The reasons are set out in this report.

Relevant Legislation

4. The Localism Act 2011 (“the 2011 Act”) governs standards of 
conduct for members of relevant authorities in England with effect 
from July 2012.  Under the 2011 Act, the Council:

a. is under a duty to promote and maintain high standards 
of conduct;

b. must adopt a Code of Conduct which is consistent with 
the statutory principles of selflessness, integrity, 
objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and 
leadership;

5. The 2011 Act requires a relevant authority to have in place 
arrangements for investigating allegations of failure to comply with 
the Code, and taking decisions about them, including appointing 
one or more independent persons, one of whose views must be 
sought before a decision is made, and one of whose views may be 
sought by the member against whom an allegation is made.

6. The Council has adopted the Code (SG1) and arrangements for 
dealing with allegations that a member of the Council in its area has 
failed to comply with the Code (SG2).

7. So far as material, the Code provides as follows:

Page 14

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 5

Section 2 (1) You must treat others with respect.

Section 4 You must not conduct yourself in a manner which 
could reasonably be regarded as bringing your office or the 
Council into disrepute, or in a manner which is contrary to the 
Council’s duty to promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct by councillors and co-opted members.

8. The LGA has issued guidance on its model code of conduct which 
contains similar provisions to those referred to above.  The guidance 
is not binding but is helpful in considering how the relevant 
paragraphs should be applied.  In relation to “respect” it states:

Disrespectful behaviour can take many different forms ranging 
from overt acts of abuse and disruptive or bad behaviour to 
insidious actions such as bullying and the demeaning treatment 
of others. It is subjective and difficult to define. However, it is 
important to remember that any behaviour that a reasonable 
person would think would influence the willingness of fellow 
councillors, officers or members of the public to speak up or 
interact with you because they expect the encounter will be 
unpleasant or highly uncomfortable fits the definition of 
disrespectful behaviour.

Examples of disrespect in a local government context might 
include rude or angry outbursts in meetings, use of 
inappropriate language in meetings or written communications 
such as swearing, ignoring someone who is attempting to 
contribute to a discussion, attempts to shame or humiliate 
others in public, nit-picking and fault-finding, the use of 
inappropriate sarcasm in communications and the sharing of 
malicious gossip or rumours.

9. Section 27 of the 2011 Act provides that a local authority’s code of 
conduct shall apply to members “when they are acting in that 
capacity.”

Page 15

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 6

10. The meaning of and extent of “official capacity” was considered by 
the courts in the cases of (R) Mullaney v The Adjudication Panel for 
England [2009] EWHC 72 (Admin) (“the Mullaney case”) and 
Livingstone v APE [2006] EWHC 2533 (Admin) (“the Livingstone 
case”).  These cases were considered under the Local Government 
Act 2000 which set out the legal framework governing member 
conduct in England prior to its repeal by the Act.  However, the 
principles set out in the decisions in those cases remain relevant to 
the current law.

11. In the Mullaney case, Charles J recognised that applying the term, “is 
inevitably fact sensitive and whether or not a person is so acting 
inevitably calls for informed judgment by reference to the facts of 
the given case.”  In that case the councillor trespassed on premises 
and made a video to highlight alleged breaches of planning law and 
named and shamed the owner.  The Council stated that he was not 
acting in his capacity as a councillor.  However, the court did not 
accept this.  Charles J stated:

I acknowledge that there would be advantage in certainty as to 
where the line is to be drawn between these activities and thus 
as to when the Code applies and when it does not. But to do 
that the language of the Code would have to be explained and 
thus added to, paraphrased or qualified and it seems to me that 
given that it uses ordinary English words (and is based on 
ordinary English words used in the statute, namely “in 
performing his functions” see s. 52(2) ) this would be 
inappropriate and would potentially lead to the error being 
made of applying guidance as to the application of a test as if it 
was itself such a test.

12. Charles J further stated:

in my view magnetic or core factors in it, which found my view 
that the Appeals Committee is plainly right, are that the taking 
and publication of the video was a continuum of steps taken in 
respect of the property by the Claimant on behalf of a 
constituent as (and identifying himself as) a Councillor by 
making “Councillor Enquiries”, his membership of the Planning 

Page 16

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 7

Committee, his legitimate and keen interest in the building as a 
Councillor (who is interested in planning matters) and his 
identification of himself as a Councillor on the video and in its 
publication.

13. In the Livingstone case, Collins J stated, “official capacity will include 
anything done in dealing with staff, when representing the Council, 
in dealing with constituents’ problems and so on.”  In the 
Livingstone case the then Mayor of London had attended an official 
engagement in his capacity as the Mayor.  As he was leaving the 
function he was confronted by a journalist.  Mr Livingstone likened 
the journalist to a concentration camp guard.  The Court held that 
the comments were not made by Mr Livingstone in his capacity.  
Collins J stated:

The Tribunal correctly decided that the appellant was not in his 
official capacity when he made the remarks in question. It is not 
in my view even arguable that when making them he was 
performing his functions as Mayor.

14. Any allegation of a failure to comply with the Code must also be 
carefully considered in the light of the Articles of the European 
Convention on Human Rights as embodied in to UK law by the 
Human Rights Act 1998.  Article 10 of the Convention states:

1. Everyone has the right to freedom of expression. This 
right shall include freedom to hold opinions and to receive and 
impart information and ideas without interference by public 
authority and regardless of frontiers…

2. The exercise of these freedoms, since it carries with it 
duties and responsibilities, may be subject to such formalities, 
conditions, restrictions or penalties as are prescribed by law 
and are necessary in a democratic society, in the interests 
of…public safety, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for 
the protection of health or morals, for the protection of the 
reputation or rights of others…

Page 17

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 8

15. The way in which Article 10 rights should be considered in relation 
to code of conduct allegations was dealt with in the case of Heesom 
v Public Services Ombudsman for Wales [2014] EWHC 1504 (Admin) 
(“the Heesom case”). It is recognised that enhanced protection is 
given to “political expression.”  In the Heesom case it was stated:

16. While freedom of expression is important to everyone, Strasbourg 
has recognised the importance of expression in the political sphere. 
It has long-recognised that what is said by elected politicians is 
subject to enhanced protection”, i.e. a higher level of protection, 
under article 10.

17. In the Heesom case the judge reviewed the previous case law on 
Article 10 and derived the following principles:

i)  The enhanced protection applies to all levels of politics, 
including local (Jerusalem, especially at [36]).

 
ii)  Article 10 protects not only the substance of what is 
said, but also the form in which it is conveyed. Therefore, in the 
political context, a degree of the immoderate, offensive, 
shocking, disturbing, exaggerated, provocative, polemical, 
colourful, emotive, non-rational and aggressive, that would not 
be acceptable outside that context, is tolerated (see, e.g. de 
Haes at [46]-[48], and Mamère at [25]: see also Calver at [55] 
and the academic references referred to therein). Whilst, in a 
political context, article 10 protects the right to make incorrect 
but honestly made statements, it does not protect statements 
which the publisher knows to be false (R (Woolas) v 
Parliamentary Election Court [2012] EWHC 3169 at [105]).

iii)  Politicians have enhanced protection as to what they say 
in the political arena; but Strasbourg also recognises that, 
because they are public servants engaged in politics, who 
voluntarily enter that arena and have the right and ability to 
respond to commentators (any response, too, having the 
advantage of enhanced protection), politicians are subject to 
“wider limits of acceptable criticism” (see, e.g., Janowski at [33]; 
but it is a phrase used in many of the cases). They are expected 

Page 18

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 9

and required to have thicker skins and have more tolerance to 
comment than ordinary citizens.

iv) Enhanced protection therefore applies, not only to 
politicians, but also to those who comment upon politics and 
politicians, notably the press; because the right protects, more 
broadly, the public interest in a democracy of open discussion 
of matters of public concern (see, e.g., Janowski at [33]). Thus, 
so far as freedom of speech is concerned, many of the cases 
concern the protection of, not a politician's right, but the right 
of those who criticise politicians (e.g.Janowski , Wabl and 
Jerusalem ). Castells, of course, was both; the senator criticising 
politicians within the Spanish Government through the press.

 
v)  The protection goes to “political expression”; but that is 
a broad concept in this context. It is not limited to expressions 
of or critiques of political views (Calver at [79]), but rather 
extends to all matters of public administration and public 
concern including comments about the adequacy or inadequacy 
of performance of public duties by others (Thorgeirson at [64]: 
see also Calver at [64] and the academic references referred to 
therein). The cases are careful not unduly to restrict the 
concept; although gratuitous personal comments do not fall 
within it.

 
vi)  The cases draw a distinction between fact on the one 
hand, and comment on matters of public interest involving 
value judgment on the other. As the latter is unsusceptible of 
proof, comments in the political context amounting to value 
judgments are tolerated even if untrue, so long as they have 
some – any – factual basis (e.g. Lombardo at [58], Jerusalem at 
[42] and following, and Morel at [36]). What amounts to a value 
judgment as opposed to fact will be generously construed in 
favour of the former (see, e.g., Morel at [41]); and, even where 
something expressed is not a value judgment but a statement 
of fact (e.g. that a council has not consulted on a project), that 
will be tolerated if what is expressed is said in good faith and 
there is some reasonable (even if incorrect) factual basis for 

Page 19

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 10

saying it, “reasonableness” here taking account of the political 
context in which the thing was said ( Lombardo at [59]).

vii)  As article 10(2) expressly recognises, the right to 
freedom of speech brings with it duties and responsibilities. In 
most instances, where the State seeks to impose a restriction 
on the right under article 10(2), the determinative question is 
whether the restriction is “necessary in a democratic society”. 
This requires the restriction to respond to a “pressing social 
need”, for relevant and sufficient reasons; and to be 
proportionate to the legitimate aim pursued by the State.

viii)  As with all Convention rights that are not absolute, the 
State has a margin of appreciation in how it protects the right 
of freedom of expression and how it restricts that right. 
However, that margin must be construed narrowly in this 
context: “There is little scope under article 10(2) of the 
Convention for restrictions on political speech or on debate on 
questions of public interest” (see, e.g., Lombardo at [55]-[56], 
Monnat at [56]).

  
ix)  Similarly, because of the importance of freedom of 
expression in the political arena, any interference with that 
right (either of politicians or in criticism of them) calls for the 
closest scrutiny by the court (Lombardo at [53]).

18. In the Heesom case, the court endorsed a three stage approach to 
dealing with Article 10 in code of conduct cases as follows:

a. Does the conduct alleged amount to a breach of the Code, 
putting aside Article 10 considerations?

b. If so, does this finding in itself or the imposition of a sanction 
prima facie a breach of Article 10?

c. If so, was the restriction involved one which was justified by 
reason of the requirements of Article 10(2)?

 

Page 20

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 11

Members’ official details

19. Cllr Spooner has been a member of the Council since 2013.  He is 
the leader of the Conservative group on the Council.  He is a 
member of the Council’s Climate Change Board, Employment Board, 
Guildford Joint Committee and Planning Committee.  He is also 
chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

20. Cllr Eyre has been a member of the Council since 2019.  He is a 
member of the Council’s Joint Executive Advisory Board and Strategy 
and Resources Executive Advisory Board.  He is also appointed to the 
following outside bodies; Ash Citizens’ Advice Bureau and 
Blackwater Advisory Committee for Public Transport. 

Background

21. The complaint arises from the events which led to the GDN 
publishing a story about the election of Cllr Spooner as leader of the 
Conservative Group on the Council in June 2021.

22. Mr Reading a part time reporter on the GDN contacted Cllr Spooner 
with a number of questions about the election.  Cllr Spooner 
responded promptly and fully.

23. Mr Giles, the complainant and editor of the GDN, had received an 
account which differed from that given by Cllr Spooner.  Mr Giles 
sent a message to Cllr Billington which stated:

Hi Richard. Trust all is well. Were you at your group’s AG? Can 
you corroborate Paul Spooner’s answers to our questions 
please. The vote figure contradicts what we were told by one 
other source but I can imagine Paul being untruthful on this as 
it would be so easily pointed out by others present.

24. Cllr Billington tried to telephone Mr Giles but Mr Giles missed the 
call and published the original story which suggested that there 
were contradictory comments about the vote.  This was later 
corrected to reflect the fact that the election was uncontested.

Page 21

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 12

25. In his complaint and evidence Mr Giles made it clear that his text to 
Cllr Billington contained a typographical error in that when it stated, 
“I can imagine Paul being untruthful”, it should have said “can’t”.  Mr 
Giles states that this is obvious from the context when looking at 
the message as a whole. 

26. Cllrs Spooner and Eyre became aware of the message sent by Mr 
Giles to Cllr Billington.  This upset and angered them as they felt 
that Mr Giles was questioning Cllr Spooner’s truthfulness and 
accusing him of lying.

27. There followed exchanges of correspondence between Cllrs Spooner 
and Eyre and Mr Reading about the story which included:

28. An email from Cllr Spooner to David Reading on 26 June 2021 which 
stated:

David I am seriously unimpressed that Giles has sent other 
members of the group my responses for collaboration. So you 
can get stuffed.

29. A WhatsApp message from Cllr Spooner to David Reading which 
stated:

Is the rag you write for incapable of understanding the 
difference between a vote and a nomination? I was the only 
group member nominated and the vote was 8:1. I hope that is 
clear for your pea brained editor.

30. There was an exchange of emails between Cllr Eyre and David 
Reading as follows:

Cllr Eyre to David Reading 26 June 2021 at 18.53

David, what a shame you allowed the latest lies about Paul 
Spooner to be printed.

Don’t ever come to any of us Conservatives again for anything.

Page 22

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 13

Graham.

David Reading to Councillor Eyre on 26 June at 19.09

Thanks for your email Graham. I know you have just cut off all 
communication, but would you just specify what lies you are 
referring to.

Regards,

David

Cllr Eyre to David Reading on 26 June 2022 at 19.22

The latest little bending of the truth regarding Paul being 
elected as Group Leader. Your grubby little paper, or should I 
say your grubby little boss, cannot accept anything he doesn’t 
like, so he just prints lies and insinuations.  

I, for one, thought you were better than that, and wouldn’t 
allow unsubstantiated rumours to be printed. The information 
you were given was absolutely correct and could have been 
verified by anyone at the meeting.  however, Giles decides to go 
with lies from people who weren’t even there.  

It’s a sad day, but it’s not the first time lies and half truths have 
been printed in the Dragon, rather than facts. 

Graham.

31. Cllr Spooner also posted two tweets on twitter which stated:  

What a seedy rag @guildforddragon is. They send me qns (sic) 
for answering.  I do that promptly and to the best of my ability 
and then they circulate to other members of the group as they 
don’t believe my responses. Balanced? Laughable.

and: 

Page 23

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 14

They send me set questions from their Ash correspondence 
David Reading. Giles as editor doesn’t like the collegiate 
responses and starts contacting other Group members as he 
doesn’t believe me and wants scandal. It really is a dirty little 
rag.

Summary of the Evidence Gathered

The evidence obtained
 

32. The following witnesses were interviewed during the investigation:

Martin Giles (SG3)
David Reading (SG4)
Cllr Spooner (SG5)
Cllr Eyre (SG6)

33. All have confirmed written records of their interviews.

34. I also sought to interview two further witnesses.  Cllr Richard 
Billington and the Chair of the Guildford Conservative Association.  
The complainant had indicated that they had evidence relevant to his 
complaint.

35. I was unable to interview Cllr Billington.  He was seriously ill and has 
very sadly recently died.

36. The Chair of the Guildford Conservative Association responded to 
my request for an interview stating, “Further to our conversation last 
week, I am writing to inform you that I will not be taking part in your 
investigation of Martin Giles’ complaint as it is in relation to GBC and 
not Guildford Conservatives.”

37. The Council’s Deputy Monitoring Officer described the process 
leading to my instructions and supplied me with relevant 
documentation, including the following: 

 The complaint form and documents attached (SG7)
 Correspondence regarding the complaints (SG8)

Page 24

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 15

Evidence of Martin Giles

38. Mr Giles confirmed that he had made a complaint to the Monitoring 
Officer of Council and that he wished to pursue the complaints and 
that the contents were true and accurate as far as he was concerned.  
Mr Giles stated that he had been told that the complaint could only 
have one name associated with it but the Council was aware of Mr 
Reading’s involvement and position.

39. Mr Giles explained that he is the editor of the GDN.  He stated that 
there has been a difficult relationship between GDN and Cllr 
Spooner.  He stated that at the time of events which gave rise to the 
complaints Cllr Spooner was willing to answer questions from GDN.  
Mr Giles stated that he went to a second person for corroboration of 
the answers.  He stated that it was not that he did not believe what 
Cllr Spooner said but he did not understand the answers.  He stated 
that there was also a time pressure because of the nature of the 
story.

40. Mr Giles stated that there were two reasons he went to someone 
else.  He stated that firstly it is always good to get corroboration 
from a second source. He stated that secondly Cllr Spooner had 
described the vote result as being 8:1 which contradicted what he 
had been told by someone else.

41. I asked Mr Giles if the GDN had published that the vote had been 
5:4; he explained that this had been referred to and the story on the 
GDN website stated “The election was uncontested. [This has been 
clarified since this story was first published.]”  Mr Giles stated that 
he did not believe that they had published that, though they may 
have done and then clarified it.  He stated that Cllr Billington had 
corroborated the vote details given by Cllr Spooner but he thought 
this had been done over the telephone and so he did not have that 
in writing.  He stated that Cllr Billington explained that there had not 
been another candidate but the vote was 8:1 because one person 
had not voted for Cllr Spooner.

Page 25

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 16

42. Mr Giles stated that at the same time that he contacted Cllr 
Billington, Mr Reading had contacted Cllr Spooner for further 
clarification and Cllr Spooner’s response was part of the basis of the 
complaint.

43. Mr Giles stated that he discussed the story with Mr Reading. He 
explained that Mr Reading sent the questions to Cllr Spooner and 
when he got the response they were not clear on the voting.  Mr 
Giles stated that he told Mr Reading that he would contact other 
councillors to find out and Mr Reading went back to Cllr Spooner.

44. I stated that there had been reference to Mr Giles publishing a story 
on the word of someone who was not even at the meeting where the 
vote had taken.  Mr Giles stated that the suggestion that the vote 
had been 5/4 may have come from someone who was not there but 
that was why they had sought corroboration of the story.

45. I stated that Cllr Eyre had stated that his email correspondence with 
Mr Reading had been from his personal email address and was 
purely personal.  He stated that it related solely to Council business 
and he did not think that just because it was sent from his personal 
email it meant that the Code did not apply.

46. I stated that Cllr Spooner had raised the point that the WhatsApp 
messages referred to in the complaint were a small sample of those 
exchanged between him and Mr Reading and had been taken out of 
context.  Mr Giles stated that he did not think that he had seen any 
others.

47. Mr Giles stated that following the complaint Cllr Spooner had cut off 
all communications with GDN which made it difficult for GDN to 
report on the Conservative Group’s views.  He stated that they now 
have to go through the Guildford Conservative Association.  Mr Giles 
stated that GCA had apologised for retweeting Cllr Spooner’s tweet 
which referred to the GDN as a “seedy rag”.

48. Mr Giles stated that the GDN’s relationship with Cllr Spooner had 
been off and on for some time and depended on whether he liked 
the last article they had written.  He stated that Cllr Spooner has 

Page 26

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 17

refused to communicate with the GDN for nine months now.  He 
stated that GDN do still publish quotes for Cllr Spooner; it is Cllr 
Spooner not wanting to talk to the GDN.

49. Mr Giles stated that all he had asked for was an apology.  He stated 
that he had also offered a resolution involving the publication of the 
informal decision of the deputy monitoring officer so people could 
make up their own minds.  He stated that he did not think that 
council tax payers’ money should be spent on this.

50. I asked why Mr Giles had identified the Chair of the Guildford 
Conservative Association as a witness.  He explained this was 
because she took down the retweet of Cllr Spooner’s tweet and 
apologised.

51. Mr Giles stated that he wished to stress the typo in his text to Cllr 
Billington but stated that it was obvious as the text would not have 
made sense otherwise.

52. Mr Giles stated that he believed that this was a simple matter and 
the Code had been breached.  He stated that he accepted that it was 
not the biggest thing in the world and there should be an apology 
and everyone could move on.

53. After the interview Mr Giles emailed me stating:

I have checked the edit trail of the story: “Paul Spooner Is 
Leader of GBC’s Conservatives Again” which, I guess, is the one 
you referred to during the interview. It seems that at no stage 
did we publish a story saying the vote was 5-4. It was put to 
him as a question for him to confirm or deny, which he did by 
saying it was 8-1.

The acknowledged clarification was the insertion of the 
sentence:  He gained the support of eight of the nine group 
members. The election was uncontested.

We did not doubt Paul Spooner’s word that the vote was 8-1 (as 
I said in my text to Richard Billington there would be little point 

Page 27

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 18

in lying given it was a witnessed event) but did not understand 
what the “1” represented, was it another candidate or an 
abstention? The latter turned out to be the case.

54. Mr Giles also provided to me an email from the Guildford 
Conservative Association regarding Cllr Spooner’s tweet (SG9).  The 
email stated:

I’ve spoken to [name redacted] just now; she’s in a meeting so 
has asked me to apologise on her behalf. I have removed the 
retweet and looking into how this has happened. I’ve just also 
had to remove a retweet from a parody account set up in [name 
redacted] name, so there is a possibility we’ve been hacked. 
 
Please be assured that Paul’s post isn’t something the 
Management Team at GCA would choose to retweet.
 
Our apologies once again.

Evidence of David Reading

55. Mr Reading confirmed that he worked as a part time reporter for the 
GDN.  He stated that he reports for the Ash area.

56. Mr Reading stated that the story about Cllr Spooner’s re-election as 
leader of the Conservative group on the Council was Mr Giles’s 
story.  He explained that Mr Giles was the editor of the GDN.  He 
stated that this came about after Cllr Spooner posted on Twitter his 
thanks to colleagues for voting him in as leader at the group AGM.

57. Mr Reading explained that because he got on with Cllr Spooner Mr 
Giles asked him to email Cllr Spooner a series of questions.  Mr 
Reading stated that he did this on 25 June 2021.  Mr Reading stated 
that Cllr Spooner replied on the same day with quite sensible 
answers to the questions which he filed with Mr Giles.  He stated 
that Mr Giles had one or two queries on the answers because he felt 
that it left unanswered questions.  Mr Reading stated that Mr Giles 
contacted Cllr Billington to confirm and corroborate some of Cllr 
Spooner’s answers.  He stated that this was the flashpoint.

Page 28

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 19

58. Mr Reading stated that it was clear from Cllr Spooner’s subsequent 
emails to him that he was seriously unimpressed that Mr Giles had 
sought “collaboration” of what he had said.  Mr Reading stated that 
it was perfectly normal to seek corroboration of information 
provided.  This did not mean that there was any suspicion that Cllr 
Spooner’s answers were untrue.  Mr Reading stated that there had 
been a genuine typo in Mr Giles’s message to Cllr Billington referring 
to Cllr Spooner being untruthful.  He stated that it was perfectly 
normal for Mr Giles to check the facts were correct.

59. Mr Reading stated that he could not get inside Cllr Spooner’s mind 
so could not say if he was upset with him or GDN.  He stated that he 
had tried to contact Cllr Spooner since about other matters but Cllr 
Spooner had said that he wanted nothing more to do with GDN, 
though he had given a quote on an issue in the area as he wanted to 
clarify something.  Mr Reading stated that Cllr Spooner was a good 
contact so it was a pity it had gone down this route.  He stated that 
he did believe the action taken by Mr Giles in making the complaint 
was solid as the responses from Cllrs Spooner and Eyre had been 
unreasonable and he was fully supportive of Mr Giles’s complaints.

60. I asked Mr Reading about the WhatsApp messages as Cllr Spooner 
had stated that the selection referred to in the complaint was 
selective.  He stated that he would have sent all messages to Mr 
Giles.  He stated that if Cllr Spooner had other messages relevant to 
the way he acted he could presumably provide them.

61. Mr Reading stated that he had no strong views on Cllr Eyre at all.  He 
stated that Cllr Eyre’s comments about the GDN referring to grubby 
people and a grubby little paper were unpleasant.

62. I asked Mr Reading about why the email exchange between him and 
Cllr Eyre was using Cllr Eyre’s personal rather than Council email 
account.  He stated that he was sure that Cllr Eyre would have 
initiated this exchange.  He explained that prior to becoming a 
councillor Cllr Eyre had been chair of the local residents’ association 
so he would have used his personal email address to contact him 

Page 29

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 20

then but would have though he would have used Cllr Eyre’s Council 
email address if he contacted him about Council issues.

Evidence of Cllr Spooner

63. Cllr Spooner explained that he is a member of the Council and has 
been since 2013.  He stated that he had been a councillor of Ash 
Parish Council since 2011.  He confirmed that he is leader of the 
opposition on the Council and had been leader of the Council 
between 2015 and 2019.

64. Cllr Spooner stated that there had been an interesting relationship 
between the Conservative group on the Council and the GDN.  He 
stated that GDN was an online news/blog site which had operated 
for around 10 years.

65. He stated that he likes to be fair.  He stated that Mr Giles has 
political leanings which are not to the Conservative party.  He stated 
that Mr Giles edits comments made by councillors and this can be 
done in a number of ways.  He stated that it is not just Conservative 
councillors who have complained about the way Mr Giles has edited 
things.  He stated that Mr Giles responds by saying that national 
news organisations edit but Cllr Spooner stated that the national 
newspapers do not hold themselves out as being unbiased.

66. Cllr Spooner stated that he has always had an excellent relationship 
with Mr Reading.  He stated that Mr Reading is an excellent 
community spokesperson who makes every effort to understand a 
story before presenting it to the editor.  He stated that Mr Reading 
does not have the final say on stories though.

67. Cllr Spooner stated that he had not been clear on whether Mr Giles 
had been making a complaint on behalf of GDN or just in his 
capacity as a journalist.

68. Cllr Spooner explained the history of the process.  He stated that on 
25 June 2021 he received an email from Mr Reading to his Council 
email address.  He stated that the subject was his re-election as 
leader of the Conservative group.  He stated that in the email Mr 

Page 30

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 21

Reading asked a series of questions which were absolutely fine.  He 
stated that he saw no reason not to answer those questions which 
he did and thought that would be the end of it.

69. Cllr Spooner stated that later that evening he received a telephone 
call from Cllr Billington.  He stated that Cllr Billington read out a text 
which he had received from Mr Giles.  He stated that he had been 
very unhappy to receive that call and Cllr Billington had been 
unhappy that Mr Giles had questioned his truthfulness.  He stated 
that Mr Giles had been dismissive about this saying later it was a 
typo in his text but it was not surprising that Cllr Billington had felt 
that it was rudely and directly questioning Cllr Spooner’s integrity at 
the time.  He stated that he accepted, after receiving the complaint 
form, some days later, that it was an error.

70. Cllr Spooner stated that he thought that Mr Giles should have 
apologised to him.  He stated that set the context for what 
happened next.  He stated that Mr Reading contacted him the 
following day and his response had been very curt as he had been 
very unhappy.  He stated that he did not swear or use any 
expletives.  He stated that it was sent to a journalist not a resident 
as the contact from Mr Reading was as a journalist.  He stated that 
considering what had gone on he still felt that it was quite 
measured.

71. Cllr Spooner stated that even if his answers to Mr Reading’s 
questions had been answered in an inappropriate or inaccurate way 
(which they were not) they should have been published without 
going to check the facts.  He stated that GDN circulate responses to 
opposition councillors sometimes to create scandal.

72. Cllr Sooner stated that he was unhappy that he had answered the 
questions put to him honestly and fairly but that they had then been 
touted around others; he knew about them contacting Cllr Billington 
but did not know who else had been contacted.  Cllr Spooner stated 
that Mr Reading had referred to someone else clarifying.  He stated 
that group meetings were private.  He stated that he felt that the 
process of dealing with the questions had been flawed on a 
journalistic level.

Page 31

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 22

73. Cllr Spooner stated that he then had further email correspondence 
with Mr Reading and he had not pulled any punches.

74. Cllr Spooner stated that it had been proposed by Mr Giles that a 
solution would be to publish the complaint as resolution.  Cllr 
Spooner stated that he agreed this in principle so long as he had a 
right of reply but the deputy monitoring officer said no the GDN did 
not accept that.  He stated that he did not see how anyone could 
possibly agree to that proposal.

75. Cllr Spooner stated that there had been 200 WhatsApp messages 
between him and Mr Reading.  He stated that out of professional 
fairness he would not disclose all of these.

76. Cllr Spooner stated that he did send a private WhatsApp message to 
Mr Reading which referred to GDN as a “rag” and Mr Giles as its “pea 
brained editor”.  He stated that this was not in public and he would 
not publish WhatsApp messages and was disappointed that Mr 
Reading had shared it.  He stated that if he had made those 
comments in the public arena he would have withdrawn them or 
apologised.

77. After the interview I emailed Cllr Spooner and asked him about the 
tweets referred to in the complaint.  He replied stating;

I can confirm that the tweet you attached was sent to me in a 
personal capacity (“views my own”) as per my twitter profile. It 
was not personal to a resident and referred to a (sic) online 
news/blog site. This morning I was at a public meeting where a 
Secrethary (sic) of State referred to the Guardian Newspaper in 
exactly the same way, and stated it was a personal view of his!

Evidence of Cllr Eyre

78. Cllr Eyre confirmed that he is a member of the Council and had been 
since 2019.  He confirmed that he had received training on the Code 
of Conduct.

Page 32

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 23

79. Cllr Eyre explained that he had known Mr Reading for a lot of years.  
He explained that before he became a councillor he had been 
Chairman of Ash Residents’ Association (“ARA”) and he got on well 
with Mr Reading.  He stated that when he had been Chairman of the 
ARA Mr Reading had contacted him if there was any story which he 
thought the ARA would have an interest in.

80. He stated that Mr Giles is a tory baiter who hates Conservatives and 
loves to wind them up and print untruths.  He stated that he felt Mr 
Giles had gone too far and his article basically called Cllr Spooner a 
liar.

81. Cllr Eyre stated that he sent an email to Mr Reading saying what he 
thought of Mr Giles.  He stated that it was his personal opinion 
about Mr Giles.  He stated that it basically went from there.  He 
stated that it was a personal email which he sent to someone he had 
known for 15 years; it was a comment and that was it.  He stated 
that the email was not directed to Mr Giles.  He stated that there was 
no way he was going to apologise for something he didn’t even say 
to the guy.

82. Cllr Eyre explained that the issue arose because previously there had 
been a split in the Conservative group on the Council and this went 
on for some time.  He stated that they wanted to resolve it and 
reform as one group.  He explained that they then had their first 
group meeting in quite a while with all councillors.  He stated that 
there had been two groups with separate leaders.  He stated that it 
was decided at the meeting that Cllr Spooner would be the leader of 
the newly reformed group.  He stated that everyone there was in 
favour of Cllr Spooner being the leader.

83. Cllr Eyre stated that news of this got to Mr Giles and he produced an 
article saying that it was not a unanimous vote.  He stated that Cllr 
Spooner had told Mr Giles that it was unanimous.  He stated that Mr 
Giles produced an article saying that what Cllr Spooner had said was 
not true.  He stated that Mr Giles had not been there and no one Mr 
Giles knew had been there but he was basically saying that Cllr 
Spooner was lying.  Cllr Eyre stated that had been the last straw for 

Page 33

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 24

Cllr Spooner as it came on top of a lot of stories in the GDN which 
had not been nice about the Conservative group.

84. Cllr Eyre stated that he could have sent something to Mr Giles telling 
him what he thought about him but he had sent a personal email to 
Mr Reading which had been less than complimentary about Mr Giles.  
He stated that he had not intended for Mr Reading to pass it to his 
boss.  He stated that it was one of those things; what people do with 
emails you send to them is out of your hands.  He stated that he was 
not sorry that he had sent the email.

Findings of fact

85. The facts relevant to the complaints in the case are not in dispute.  
Cllr Spooner does not deny sending the email and WhatsApp 
messages which form the basis of the complaint.  He also does not 
deny posting the tweets which form the basis of the complaint.

86. Cllr Eyre does not deny sending the email which forms the basis of 
the complaint.

Reasoning as to whether there is a breach of the Code.

87. The relevant parts of the Code which I have considered during my 
investigation are paragraphs 2(1) and 4.  

88. The test in deciding whether or not there has been a breach of the 
code is objective: would a reasonable person aware of all the 
material facts and ignoring all immaterial factors consider that there 
has been a breach of the code?  

89. The code of conduct only applies to the conduct of a member acting 
as a councillor and not at any other time.   I have considered 
whether Cllrs Spooner and Eyre were acting in their capacity as 
councillors at the relevant times.  In my view they were. 
 

90. Cllr Spooner sent the email to Mr Reading from his Council email 
address.  The contact from David Reading was solely about the 
process of the election of Cllr Spooner to be group leader of the 

Page 34

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 25

Conservative Group.  The messages and tweets referred to in the 
complaint were entirely related to Cllr Spooners election and his role 
as group leader of the Conservative Group on the Council.  The 
interaction by councillors with the local press is an integral part of 
the role of councillors, particularly senior councillors.  In respect of 
each of the matters complained about these were clearly directly 
issues which Cllr Spooner was only engaged in as a councillor and 
not in any other capacity.  

91. Cllr Eyre sent the email to Mr Reading from his private email 
address.  However, of itself this does not mean that he was not 
acting as a councillor.  To determine in what capacity he was acting 
in doing so the purpose and nature of the correspondence needs to 
be considered.  A councillor cannot avoid their obligations under the 
Code simply by not using their council email address.  As with Cllr 
Spooner this correspondence only arose as a result of Cllr Eyre’s 
position as a councillor and was specifically about Council matters; 
Cllr Spooner’s election as leader of the Conservative group on the 
Council.  Therefore, he was acting in his capacity as a councillor 
when sending that email.

92. The comments made by Cllr Spooner in his email to Mr Reading 
telling him to, “get stuffed” clearly showed a lack of respect to Mr 
Reading and, therefore, amounted to a failure to comply with 
paragraph 2(1) of the Code.

93. The comments made by Cllr Spooner in his WhatsApp message to Mr 
Reading, referring to Mr Giles as his “pea brained editor” clearly 
showed a lack of respect to Mr Giles and, therefore, amounted to a 
failure to comply with paragraph 2(1) of the Code.

94. In making these unnecessary and derogatory comments Cllr Spooner 
failed to maintain the high standards of conduct expected of 
councillors and, therefore, amounted to a failure to comply with 
paragraph 4 of the Code.

95. The tweets posted by Cllr Spooner referred to the GDN as a “dirty 
little rag” and “a seedy little rag.”  Cllr Spooner also states in the 
tweets that Mr Giles did not believe his responses.  These are 

Page 35

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 26

comments about a media organisation and not specifically about an 
individual.  The references to it as a rag are political puff and 
rhetoric and not personal comments.  Whilst journalists and the 
editors may take exception and be affronted by such comments and 
feel it questions their professionalism as journalists they are not 
comments which amount to a lack of respect within the meaning of 
the Code.  They do not amount to a failure to show respect within 
the meaning of the Code or a failure to maintain high standards of 
conduct.  As Cllr Spooner suggested they are fairly commonplace 
comments which politicians may make about media outlets they feel 
are unfavourable to them and I believe they would be perceived by 
the public in that way. 

96. The email from Cllr Eyre to David Reading referred to Martin Giles as 
Mr Reading’s “grubby little boss”. was clearly disrespectful to Mr 
Giles and, therefore, amounted to a failure to comply with paragraph 
2(1) of the Code.  This also fails to maintain high standards of 
conduct.  Cllr Eyre argues that he made the comments in a private 
email to Mr Reading and not to Mr Giles.  However, the fact that the 
disrespectful comments were made to a third party does not excuse 
them or make them any less disrespectful.

97. I have carefully considered both Cllr Spooner and Cllr Eyre’s Article 
10 rights.  In accordance with the process outlined in the Heesom 
case and others I have adopted a three-stage approach to this.

98. I will firstly consider how this applies to the complaint against Cllr 
Spooner.

99.  The three-stage approach requires first a consideration of whether, 
regardless of Article 10, the conduct amounts to a failure to comply 
with the Code.  It follows from the above that in respect of the 
comments made by Cllr Spooner in his email and WhatsApp message 
to Mr Reading that these do amount to a failure to comply with the 
Code.

100.The next question is whether any finding of failure to comply with 
the Code and/or sanction imposed would amount to an interference 
with Cllr Spooner’s Article 10 rights.  I believe that it would.  It is 

Page 36

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 27

almost inevitable that such a finding and any sanction imposed 
would interfere with an elected members freedom of speech.

101. The final stage is to consider whether such an interference is 
justified by reference to Article 10 (2).  My view is that it is.  The 
Localism Act provides for the regulation of member conduct so the 
interference is in accordance with the law.  The interference is 
justified for the protection of the rights and freedom of others 
namely those disrespected and the public generally to have 
confidence in the good conduct of those in public office.  The 
interference is also proportionate given the limited sanctions 
available in respect of such conduct and the limited impact it would 
have on Cllr Spooner.

102.I have considered whether the comments made by Cllr Spooner 
amount to political expression which is afforded a high degree of 
protection.  Mr Giles is a journalist writing about and commenting 
on political matters so must be expected to receive a certain amount 
of comment on his reporting by those he reports about.  However, 
the comments made by Cllr Spooner which I have found to result in 
a failure to comply with the Code are merely personal and abusive 
(“So you can get stuffed” and “pea brained editor”) and cannot be 
categorised as political expression.

103.As the conduct of Cllr Eyre is very similar to that of Cllr Spooner the 
same considerations apply in relation to Cllr Eyre’s comments calling 
Mr Giles a, “grubby little boss.”  I reach the same conclusion that the 
interference with his Article 10 rights is justified and proportionate.

104.As Mr Giles recognised the conduct of both Cllrs Spooner and Eyre is 
at the lower end of Code breaches and it is disappointing that the 
members did not recognise that their use of intemperate and 
disrespectful language was unnecessary and inappropriate and 
apologise for this at an early stage avoiding the need for an 
investigation and potentially a hearing.

Page 37

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 28

Finding

105.My finding is that there has been a failure to comply with 
paragraphs 2(1) and 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct by Cllrs 
Spooner and Cllr Eyre.

106.I am sending a copy of this report to the Deputy Monitoring Officer 
of the Council.

Comments on Draft Report

107.I sent a draft of my report to the complainant and Cllrs Spooner and 
Eyre for their comments.  All three responded.

108.Cllr Eyre indicated that he had no further comments.

109.Cllr Spooner responded stating:

I am still unhappy that reference is not made to Cllr Billington’s 
serious illness and my annoyance that Mr Giles was upsetting 
Richard when he knew that Cllr Billington was very ill. Whilst I 
understand the reason you omitted that from my witness 
statement I believe that it is important to the context of events 
and given that very sadly Cllr Billington has now died from his 
Cancer I believe that the reasons for omission are no longer 
relevant as poor Richard is no longer with us.

I do not believe that 48 is wholly true. See separate email from 
Mr Giles at GDN rejecting a factual correction comment. 
Perhap’s that should be modified to ‘most’ or ‘some’ as it 
depends on whether my comments could be construed as 
supportive of the editorial position or not.

There may also be a factual correction required. Private Comms 
between myself and Mr Reading were not just on whatsapp and 
took several forms including WhatsApp, Messenger and email. I 
apologise if I misled you by stating only WhatsApp if that is 
what I did.

Page 38

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 29

110.I had not made reference to Cllr Billington’s illness in my draft report 
as I did not have his permission to do so and I was concerned about 
referring to sensitive information about him.  Cllr Spooner had 
indicated that one of the reasons he was so angry about Mr Giles’s 
behaviour was because he had chosen to contact Cllr Billington 
despite knowing he was seriously ill.  This may provide a degree of 
context and mitigation it does not justify Cllr Spooner’s response.

111.Cllr Spooner also sent an email which Mr Giles had sent to him dated 
5 April 2022 (SG10).  Cllr Spooner stated that this email 
demonstrated that paragraph 48 of my report was not accurate.  I do 
not think that is the case. In fact the wording of the email appears 
entirely consistent with Mr Giles’s evidence to me.

112.Mr Giles sent detailed comments on the draft report to me and I 
responded to his comments.  Mr Giles sent a further email.  I will not 
detail all of the points raised by Mr Giles but the exchange of emails 
is attached (SG11).  However, he very strongly refutes the views 
expressed by Cllrs Eyre and Spooner that he has an anti-
Conservative stance or agenda.

113.Mr Giles also provided a copy of the Council’s Social Media Guidance 
for Councillors (SG12).
 

Simon Goacher, Partner
Weightmans LLP
7 June 2022

Page 39

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



CONFIDENTIAL

The contents of this draft report and any accompanying documents are 
confidential and must not be disclosed. 30

Schedule of evidence 

SG1 Council Code of Conduct  

SG2 Council arrangements for dealing with complaints about 
members 

SG3 Record of Interview of Martin Giles

SG4 Record of Interview of David Reading

SG5 Record of Interview of Cllr Spooner

SG6 Record of Interview of Cllr Eyre

SG7 Complaint form and supporting documents

SG8 Correspondence regarding the complaints

SG9 Email from Guildford Conservative Association to Mr Giles

SG10 Email from Martin Giles to Cllr Spooner

SG11 Emails between Mr Giles and Simon Goacher re draft report

SG12 Social Media Guidance for councillors

Page 40

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



   

   

           

      

 

Page 41

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



   

     
   

  

  

   

  

 

 

                
             

         

               
            

            
   

              

 

           
           

               
            

         

           
             

            
           

   

             
           

          

        

            
          

          

   

    Page 42

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



          
             

       

               
             

            
            

             
         

 

           
                

                
                
      

  

   

        
          

 

  

  

         
        

         
          

         

         
         

      

  

         
           

      
          

       

       
  

          
     
  

          
           

  
  

        
        
           
             
Page 43

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

         
 

          
          

 
  

         
         

     
            
          

          
        

            
  

          

       

              
               
               

  

            

   

             

                

        

        

     

           

               
               

      

              

  

          

            
             

     

     

   

       Page 44

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



          
         

            

 

            
               

            

          

           
              

   

             

  
       
      
            

         

              
       

                 
           

            
              

            
             

            
             

            
            
            

  

        

    

              

 

         

      

        
          

          
          Page 45

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



          
          

              
           

      

    

   

          

          
         

           

          

          
       

        

   

                

   

    

          

            
           

             
          

   

            
               

    

            

         

              
            

      

     

          

 

Page 46

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



           
     

              

   

               
                

             

   

 

                
              

   

              

         

            
     

             
     

              
            
           

             
         

 

                
            

            
             

 

            

   

               

 

          

           
   

            
  

                   

    Page 47

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

 

 

                
             

              

              
             

  

              
             

             
               
           

    

     

               
            

            
              

              
              
              

 

                 
             
             

               
                 

                    
             

                
           
           

          

                
                
               

             

                 
             

    Page 48

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



            
            

         

            
                  

  

                
              

     

        
            

                  
              

            
                
 

               
     

              
         

              
                

           

              
                 

            

        

              

               

            
                

  
              
             

            
              

            Page 49

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

               
               

              
            
             

    

                
           

              
             

   

              
              

                
          

               
        

              
            

               
               

             

                 
             

             
                

                 
                 

  

               
             

                  
               

     

                
            

              
             

             
        

             

   Page 50

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



             
              

       

         

               

      

            

                 

 

           

              
  

             

       

                   

       

                  
               
                
           

            
                

  

               
                

                  
            
               

              
          

 

               

              
             

      

             
              

    
 

Page 51

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



            
               

          

             
            

      

            
            

      

            
              

         

               

          

                

      

  

        

              
      

               
            

            
          

   

                
             

              
             

      

             
            

               

       

      

               

  

       

            
        

  Page 52

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



       

               
            

       

 Page 53

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



   

   

           

      

 

Page 54

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



             

   

      
     

 

 

               
            

             
               
             

     

            
            

                

       

              

    

            

            

             
               

              

  

             
           

       

               

       

            

              

   

                

            

 

        
          

   

    

 

Page 55

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



            

              
                

      

            
            

 

         
            

             
            

 

           

 

         
           

 

              
             

         

             
               
             

          

  

           
              

             
           

           
              

            
               

            
             
             

 

             
             

           
         

   Page 56

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

            

              
               

              
           

           

 

             
              

            

   

               
             

    

  
   

  
  

 
 

   
  

   

             
              

             
             

       

            
           

          

          
          

       

  

  

             
          
             

         

    

             
               

 
   Page 57

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



       

            
               

        

    

              

          
              

                 
             

            
            
            

  

               
              

           
           
            

             
               
             

           
          

               
              

       

              
             

         

    

             
           
               

        

    

      

            
               

             

         

               

  

 
       

Page 58

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



            

  

            
            

    

            
       

               
             

            

   

               

      

              
         

   

           
             

            
           

           
             

            

  

      

            
             

        

              

              

       

               
             
              

                

   

             
             

   Page 59

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



             

           
   

             

       

             

     

              
             

   

              

         

             
               

           
           

            
            
            
           

               
              

          
            

             
              

            

    

           
            

               
            

 

       

           
          

            

   

            
            

              

     

   Page 60

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



            

           

            

 

           

 

          

            
            

          
     

            

    
         

     
             

  

             

  

         

             

          

               

          

            

 

                
               

   

              

 

           

  
             
             

   
          
     

         

           

 

               
             

 

 
   Page 61

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



            

             
 

              
             

        
              

  

            
          

                
              

            
             

  

  

            

            
               

  

               
           

 

          
               

 
               

 
               

        

             
         
           

           
             
           

            
             

           
                

                
               

             

    

            
           

 
   Page 62

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

            

             
  

   

            
                

             
             

            
            

           
                
      

     

            
              

    

              
             

           

           

      

            

 

       

              
     

             
      

         

              
          

              
              
         

             
            

            
            

             

 
   Page 63

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

               

                

            

           

 

              

               

             

    

               

            

   

              

               

        

            

           

 

     

          
         

              

  

      

              

           

           

 

              

         

               

   

             

         

             

              

            

     
Page 64

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



            

             

         

     

             

      

             

    
  

 

Page 65

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



            

  

       

            
             

           
            

            

    

            
         

             

 
     

            
            

     

                
               

               
                
              

             
             

               
              
             

 

              

               
            
           

             

              
             

               
             

              
             

            
            

              
             

           

    
    

 

Page 66

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



            

              

      

              

     

              

            

             

           

             

  

    

 

Page 67

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



             

  

       

    

              
            

            
               

         

              
           

      

             
          

 

 

 

 

           

            

            

          

       

           

            

 

            
           

         

              

 

           

      

             

   

              
         

    
 

Page 68

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



             

             
 

             
              

           
              
      

    

               
          

        

               
            
     

      

                
                 

              
     

  

             
           

              
             

               
             

           
              

    

            
     

            
           

             
            
        

      

             
           

 
   Page 69

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

            

            

             

            

            

          

         

          

           

           

          

           

            

 

     

             

             

 

           

            

          

         

          

           

            

     

           

            

              

            

            

          

 

             

                

           

              

     

    

              

            

 
    

 

Page 70

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

   

 

 

  

             

                

                 

             

     

            

              

     

       

                

             

              

           

        

             

               

           

             

            

           

    

   

               

              

            

       

         

           

             

      

           

                

             

  

              

           

          

 
    

       

 

Page 71

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



         

                

      

            
          

        
          

  

            
           

                
             

  

              
              

                 
         

   

               
             

               
             

   

     
Page 72

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

            

  

           

  

 

             

            

            

        

   

   

           

            

            

     

            

            

          

           

       

                

           

            

     

                 

            

       

             

              

       

           

            

            

         

   Page 73

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

            

            

            

       

  

 

             
          

            

              

    

             
            

               

    

   

   

              

 

            

           

    

             
             
               

 

     

        

    

              

      

           
           

           
        

     

 
   Page 74

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



         

          
              

            
            

     

              
           

            
          

           

    

    

           

       

            
            

            

     

          
              

           

     

      

            

 

            
         

           
        

  

       

          

     

           
                

              
              

        

 
    

 

Page 75

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



            

             

             

            

           

            

     

            

         

            

              

 

           

              

              

         

             

             

           

             

         

               

           

             

          

            

          

          

          

         

             

             

         

          

           

               

          

   

            

         

            

    

    
 

Page 76

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



            

 

 

 

            
          

     

            

            
    

    

           
               

            

    

              

          

   

            

   

             
          

             

   

              

           

         

           
            

          
             

            
            

   

             
           

           
             

             
            
               

           

             
          

 
    

 
Page 77

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



             

           

            

          

     

             

 

            

       

           
           

           
            

             

 

          

         

     

       

             
           

           
            

           

           

              

           

           

          

        

          

  

             

   

     

          

         

 
   Page 78

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



            

            

 

             

       

          

               
              

             
        

   

             
              

  

    

   

    

        

    

               

             

             
          

               

             

    

              

               

             
            

               

                

             

            

 

             
            

            

 
    Page 79

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



            

  

             
            

       

 

                
    

 

            
           

            
                  

              

      

   Page 80

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



   

   

           

      

 

Page 81

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

  

         

         

          

             

            

       

              

             

     

              

                

            

              

        

               

               

               

              

                  

               

     

               

               

               

              

     

                 

               
             

                

              

              

                

              

            

                

             

               

                

                 

    

   
Page 82

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



Page 83

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



   

   

           

      

 

Page 84

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



   

         

         

           

              

           

        

               

             

     

               

             

                

               

                

           

                   

                 

                

                 

            

              

                 

              

             

              

                

               

                    

                 

                 

                 

                    

               

              

 

               

               

                

     

Page 85

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

                  

              

                

               

              

              

               

          

             

    

  

 

 

Page 86

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



   

   

           

      

Page 87

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

         

          

           

              

            

     

               

             

     

                 

               

                

      

             

              

            

                   

               

                

               

             

               

 

                

             

                

        

                  

           

                 

                 

                

                

               

                

                  

                

             

                    

  

 

Page 88

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

              

             

                

              

                

                  

                

            

               

            

              

      

               

               

                

             

                

    

               

   

                 

                 

                

               

              

             

                

                   

             

                 

    

                    

      

  

   

   

   
Page 89

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



   

   

           

      

 

Page 90

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

         

          

           

              

            

     

               

             

     

                 

            

                

               

              

                 

                

 

                 

                

              

                    

               

                 

                  

                

      

                

               

                

                

                

               

       

                    

                

                 

                 

                   

                 

 

 Page 91

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

                 

                

                   

                   

               

                    

      

    

   

      

 

Page 92

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



   

   

           

      

 

Page 93

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

  

  

  

      

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

         

 

  

 

 

 

 

        
    

         

    
    

   
   

  

    
    

   
    

 

     

   
   

    
   

 

       

  

      

        

 

        

 

         

       
       

         

        

       

   
 

Page 94

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



                
               

                

  

  

                 
                

        
            

     
                

             

 

        
         

        

    

        

        

    

           
          

       

       

      

         

     

        
        

         

       

          
      

 

       

           

       

        

         

        

      

        

       

    

       

        
     

          

 

        
            

       
Page 95

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



         

    

        

        
         

        

        

        

  

          

  

       

       

       

    

         

        

     

         

 

   

          
      

    

   

     

 

          

                
                

               
          

          
         

           

 

                
                

        

                  
                    

       

Page 96

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



            

             
              

 

               

       
               

               
               

       
                

               

     

        
         

  

         
       

      
  

  

             
         

       

     
              

      

               
            

  

           

             

             

             
            
               

               
              

    
    

   

  

       
        

   

  

                

      

               
              

                
               
                 

       

Page 97

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



                

      

              

           

 

 
          

 

  

    

  

  

       

 

Page 98

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



 Page 99

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



Page 100

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



 
Page 101

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



Page 102

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



    

        

            

                

           

  

     

    

 

Page 103

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



 

 

 
      

      

     

     

    

     
    

 

       

     

      

     

      

         

  

    

Page 104

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



   

   

           

      

 

Page 105

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

  

    

     

   

   

         

  

  

       

     

                     

       

                   

               

                    

                   

                       

 

                   

     

  

 

   

       

     

     

     

   

        

      

    

     

    

    

        

   

                     

                  
Page 106

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



                 

                

                   

                   

                     

                 

     

                       

          

  

                   

  

  

      

   

  

   

  

   

 

         

     

   

    

Page 107

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

    

     

   

   

         

  

 

  

                      

     

                    

               

                 

                        

                

                  

             

                     

                     

                   

  

 

    

    

    

   

         

   

        

   

    

   

    

    

      

     

               

    

    

     

      

   

Page 108

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



     

        

   

                     

                  

                 

              

                   

                   

                     

                 

     

                      

         

                   

  

  

      

   

  

   

  

   

 

         

     

   

    

Page 109

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

    

     

   

   

          

  

  

                      

          

  

 

    

    

    

   

         

   

        

   

    

   

    

    

      

     

     

               

    

     

     

    

    

          

   

            

                     

                       

    Page 110

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



           

  

  

           

  

   

   

  

   

         

    

   

     

        

                   

                   

  

    

     

     

    

          

  

                      

           

  

 

    

    

    

   

         

   

        

   

    

   

    

   Page 111

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



      

     

     

               

    

    

     

     

         

   

                    

                 

               

                      

                    

                  

     

                   

                     

 

                 

  

  

           

  

   

   

  

   

         

    

   

     

        

                   

                   

 

Page 112

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



   

   

           

      

 

Page 113

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



Page 114

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



   

   

           

      

 

Page 115

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

    

     

   

      

      

  

                 
          

  

    

  

 

    

    

    

   

         

   

        

   

    

   

    

    

      

     

     

               

    

     

     

      

     

    

Page 116

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



          

       

             

          

         

             

 

  

 

            

            

           

             

             

           

             

     

 

  

  

    
  

 

 

   

               

  

                     

                      

                 

Page 117

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



                          
                        

  

                         
                   

         

Page 118

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



   

   

           

      

 

Page 119

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



Page 120

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



    

                       

 

     

                 

    

  

  

                 

                 

                  

  

                    

 

     

   

  

           

 

    

    

                       

                     

           

                  

              

              

               Page 121

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



                

                 

                   

                     

        

               

                  

                 

                  

         

                  

              

 

 

          

  

     

                 

        

                 

             

             

          

                   

       

     

     

    
Page 122

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



                  

    

                  

                   

                 

            

                

               

 

                 

                

           

                  

                 

                

                

                

                  

  

                   

          

               

                 

    

                

 

                

             

                   

                  

               

          

                  

      

                 

                 

 

 
Page 123

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



Page 124

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



Page 125

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



              

             

        

           

     

            

           

 

            

               

      

       

            

             

            

           

     

     

              

            

       

             

            

              

  

              

           

              

            

 

          

         

          

         

 

 

Page 126

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



         

  

           

          

           

         

             

            

        

         

              

              

           

             

          

     

            

             

             

             

         

            

           

     

              

    

                 

       

             

             

            

          

         

        

 

           

           
Page 127

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



          

         

          

            

  

            

            

           

      

             

       

 

        

  

  

                  

              

               

                

        

               

    

             

       

               

                   

                
Page 128

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

             

             

                 

                   

                

          

   

                

              

               

              

    

     

                  

                

                  

                    

                  

                  

              

     

                  

      

 

Page 129

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



   

   

           

      

 

Page 130

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



  

     

        

   

              

         

     

    

          

              

       

   

              

         

         

       

  

      

      

       

        

       

  

 

Page 131

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



          

               

            

             

            

            

 

              

           

              

           

 

            

             

          

             

              

            

           

              

        

         

          

               

               

             

  

              

            

              

           

            

   

      

            

     

  

               

Page 132

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



              

             

             

               

          

               

               

             

    

  

               

               

               

          

           

     

      

        

               

           

            

       

          

               

    

            

                  

             

          

              

  

             

  
          

         

Page 133

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



 

 

 

            

               

              

            

           

            

         

   

              

           

             

       

             
            

              

           

               

        

              

    

            

              

              

             

              

           

             

 

           

           

      

           

               

            

             
             

                 

        

Page 134

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



    

          

   

             

   

          

        

  

   

           

          

             

         

             

   

      

                

               

                

     

                   

           

                  

              

              

  

                

         

                 

                 

       

                

               

                

            

Page 135

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

            
              

   

               

   

            

             

         

                

                

             

      

                

                 

       

              

            

             

   

            

              

 

            

 

               

          

                

      

              

            

 

                

               

         

        

 

Page 136

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



                 

  

        

                 

   
                

               

   

  

                 

          

           

              

               

     

   

              

           

               

              

              

          

            

        

              

               

              

                

  

    

               

      

              

               

 

            

              

             

Page 137

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



                

      

              

             

            

       

               

    

                  

  

           

       

               

           

             

    

                  

                

                 

           

                

           

                

            

          

           

               

            

                

              

          

                

             

  

               

                 

              

               

             

Page 138

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



 

 

 

 

 

 

                  

           

                

               
              

           

              

      

                

               

                   
      

               

           

            

              

                

             

            

             

  

             

              

       

          

              

               

                

              

              
            

              

               

                

            

      

     

            

                

              

            

   

Page 139

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



             

             

    

                   

            

                

                

      

               

                

               

            

                

                

      

               
               

              

                

     

                 

              

             

    

                  
                  

             

 

              

                

                

              

               

                  

                

 

  Page 140

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



      

                  

              

      

              

              

          

             

             

               

         

     

          

               

     

               

           

       

             

              

       

             

  

                 

               

              
 

            

         

               

            

                   

        

                

     

  Page 141

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



                 

                   

                  

           

                 
                   

    

               

             

 

              

                   

           

              

              

                
     

                

                

                 

             

        

                   

                 

      

              

           

              

                

 

             

             

               

             

                  

        

          

                

                

  Page 142

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



      

                 

           

         

              

            

            

                 
              

      

  

                

     

        

        

             

 

             

    

          

 
 Page 143

Agenda item number: 4
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Allegations regarding the conduct of two Borough Councillors
	Hearings Sub-Committee Report
	Report of Deputy Monitoring Officer
	Allegations regarding the conduct of two Borough Councillors
	1.	Purpose of Report
	2.	Strategic Priorities
	3.	Background
	4.	Consultations
	5.	Financial Implications
	6.	Legal Implications
	Conduct of the Hearing

	7. 	Human Resource Implications
	9.	Climate Change/Sustainability Implications
	10. 	Summary of Options
	11. 		Background Papers
	12. 	Appendices

	Item 04 (1) - Allegations of misconduct by two Borough Councillors - App 1 - Investigators Report
	767825 - Final Report.pdf
	evidence_Redacted.pdf





